
 
 

 

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
10 FRONT STREET • EXETER, NH • 03833-3792 • (603) 778-0591 •FAX 772-4709 

www.exeternh.gov 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
EXETER CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

 
 

The Exeter Conservation Commission will meet in the Exeter Town Hall 
on Tuesday, January 12th, 2016 at 7:00 P.M. 

 
 
Call to Order: 

1. Introduction of Members Present  
2. Public Comment 

 
Action Items 

1. Standard Dredge and Fill Application for a Light Industrial/Distribution Facility at 12 Continental Drive, 
Tax Map 46, Lot 1 (Jim Petropulos, Brendan Quiqley) 

2. Snowshoe Hullaballoo February Snow Shoe Race Event Request Feb 20th (Ri Fahnestock, Sarah Sallade) 
3. Raynes Foundation Repairs  Engineering (Don Briselden) 
4. All Boards Meeting – Feb 10th, Exeter Public Library 6 pm 
5. Committee Reports  

a. Property Management 
i. Timber Harvest Update 

ii. Chamberlin Easement Paddock Notification 
b. Trails 

i. Closure Process for Harvest 
ii. Sign Estimate  

c. Outreach  
i. Bobcat Hunting Legislation 

ii. Soak NH Spring Rain Garden Install 
6. Treasurers Report  
7. Approval of Minutes: December 8th, 2015 
8. Other Business 
9. Next Meeting:  

a. Date (2/9/16)  
b. Submission Deadline (1/29/16) 
c. Agenda Items 

 
Work Session  

2016 Work Plan Development 
 

 
Jay Gregoire, Chair  
Exeter Conservation Commission 
January 8th, 2016 Exeter Town Office, Exeter Public Library, and Town Departments.  

http://www.exeternh.gov/


TOWN OF EXETER 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM 

Date:  January 8, 2016 
To:  Conservation Commission Board Members 
From:  Kristen Murphy, Natural Resource Planner 
Subject:  January 12 Conservation Commission Meeting  
 
12 Continental Drive ( Map 46/Lot 1) 
Received by Town Clerk: 12/15/15 
40 Day NHDES Response Deadline: 1/24/15      
 
The project involves development of a 106,585 SF light industrial facility and associated infrastructure and will 
require 6,178 SF of permanent wetland impact and 59,600 SF buffer impact (a portion of which will be restored).     
 
Wetland Application Review 

 Application included items in “Required Information” check list 
 Wetland application appears to be filled out accurately 
 NH Heritage Bureau had no concerns or recommendations. 

 
Town Application Review 
Project requires Site Plan Review and Conditional Use Permit – Wetlands Conservation Overlay District from the 
Planning Board.  Of special note: applicant has requested a waiver for relief from the 75’ paving setback.  In 
accordance with Exeter Site Plan regulations 9.9.3.6, recommendations from the Exeter Conservation Commission 
are required to be reviewed and considered.  The applicant’s response to waiver requirements can be reviewed in the 
December 14th, 2015 waiver request letter under “Waiver Request #4” in your packet.  CC recommendation is 
requested. 
 
Technical Review Committee (TRC) meeting was January 5th. Materials before the CC do not yet incorporate TRC 
recommended changes.  Applicant’s re-submittal date is January 15th. Applicant is scheduled to present to the 
Planning Board on January 28th.   
 
Points for Consideration: 
12 Continental Drive is one of several commercial lots within the Garrison Glen development.  At the time of its 
creation by REDC, a 212 acre conservation area was set aside to protect the more sensitive resources within this 
area.  This area is a portion of what we call the Little River Conservation Area.   
 
The applicant is proposing a large amount of the wetland buffers impacted by the construction to be restored through 
seeding and allowed to naturally revegetate. 
 
Applicant provided arguments for the criteria in both the wetland application (Attachment A 20 Questions) and 
wetland waiver request appear accurate and persuasive.   

Recommendation:  
Should you concur with the applicant’s response to Attachment A. 20 Questions, I recommend sending a 
letter of no objection to the project as presented to NH DES.  

 
Should you concur with the applicant’s response to Wetland Waiver Guidelines, I recommend sending a 
memo supporting the waiver request to the Planning Board.   

 
Snowshoe Hullaballoo Event Request- Feb 20th  
Event application is in your packet.  As discussed during the timber meeting in December, the logging operation 
may impact their course route.  Both Ri and Sarah have asked to be kept in the loop on logging operation timing and 
trail closures.  I’ve included their past maps so that we could identify sections that are likely to be impacted during 
harvest. 

Recommendation:  Approve with condition that course will be dependent on logging operations.  
 

http://des.nh.gov/organization/divisions/water/wetlands/documents/wet-permit-app-instruct.pdf


Raynes Maintenance Planning 
Don Briselden has requested an estimate from an engineering firm for developing a list of improvement/repair needs 
for Raynes Barn with approximate cost estimates.  The priority from this list is to stabilize the sidewall that was 
temporarily secured last year.  The proposal is attached.  Follow-up correspondence indicated that item 2 on the 
proposal would cost $1500. 

Recommendation:  Approve the expenditure of $1,500 for repair of the north sill.  $1450 from Contract 
Services, $50 from Conservation Land Administration . 

 
All Boards Meeting: 
You should have received an invitation to attend the All Boards Meeting Feb 10th.  Your packet includes the email 
which contains agenda topics.  If you need a copy of this report again please contact me. 
 
Chamberlin Easement Paddock Notification 
As mentioned at the last meeting the new owners for the Chamberlin Easement had planned to exercise their 
reserved rights in the Conservation Easement to install a horse paddock.  The property has a 12 acre exclusion area 
within which the majority of the paddocks will be located.  There is a need however, to overlap onto the easement 
by 50’ in one direction and 150’ in another.  In accordance with the easement language they are to notify the 
Commission prior to exercising their reserved rights.  They did so by sending along the information contained in 
their packet.   

Recommendation:  No action required.  
 
Timber Harvest/Trail Closure Process: 
Sweets Logging was contractor was selected at 12/15 special meeting.  Legal counsel is reviewing a draft contract.  
It is hoped this will be finalized by Tuesday’s meeting. 

Recommendation:  Sign contract if available, if not, designate a member to sign following approval by 
legal counsel.  

 To close trails onsight will require installation of signage along trail junctions and will require assistance from 
Commission members.   

Recommendation:  Identify members who will participate 
 
Sign Estimate: 
Jason Fritz (NEMBA trail patrol rep) said his father is a woodworker. I took the liberty of obtaining an estimate.  
See email from Larry Fritz in packet.   

Recommendation:  Discuss sign design further with the White family to see if costs can be reduced. 
 
Bobcat Legislation: 
Stoddard Conservation Commission sent correspondence requesting your support in opposing the proposed 
legislation to allow hunting/trapping of bobcats.  In addition, Selectboard member Anne Surman also reached out to 
Jay Gregoire to inquire if you would be taking a position.  She plans to attend the hearing Feb 1 at 6pm.  Packet 
includes the letter from Stoddard CC as well as letter of opposition prepared for you, should you agree to oppose.   

Recommendation:  Determine if you would like to take a position as a Commission on this issue and if you 
do, if you support signing the provided letter or preparing your own.   

 
Soak NH Rain Garden: 
Summer 2015, Pete, Ginny and I met with volunteers from the SoakNH program.  We looked at the possibility of 
doing a neighborhood rain garden installation.  Two areas were considered:  Marshall Farms and Westside Drive. 
We have residents within Marshall Farms who have expressed interest in installing a raingarden.  Westside Drive we 
would have to find a willing participant.  I am looking to see if this is a project the CC is willing to support ideally 
with both volunteers for labor/outreach as well as $250 in funds to offset raingarden costs.   

Recommendation:  Should you support the project $250 could be funding with Community Svcs funds.  
 
 

































































































































































Exeter Conservation Commission 

Event Agreement 

NOTE:  This agreement is in addition to permits required by the Town of Exeter.   

Event Name:  Snowshoe Hullabaloo – Snowshoe Race Event Date: Saturday February 20th 

Point of Contact:  Sarah Sallade 603 568 2505 sarah.silverberg@gmail.com   

Ri Fahnestock 603 866 1268 gobolder@gmail.com   Estimate of Participants:  100 

Event Description:  Snowshoe race for people of all ages and abilities.  Held in Henderson-Swasey Forest, starting 
at the unofficial entrance at the end of Commerce Way. Race course design will depend on logging operations; we 
will look to ConCom for guidance.  The race part of the Granite State Snowshoe Series, which draws people from 
around New England. We have ongoing permission with J.Shafmaster, S.Heal and J.Deane to use their property as 
part of the race and always have our COIs on hand during the race. 

Please read, sign and initial below.  A copy of the notice of Authorization will be provided to you upon signature by 
the Conservation Commission and should be in hand on the day of the event. 

I, Sarah Sallade  agree to comply with the following terms for the above referenced event.   

SS Event related activities do not involve private property, unless authorized in writing by landowner, with 
such permission provided to the Conservation Commission 2 days prior to the event.    

SS Two (2) days prior to the event, the course conditions will be inspected.  If trails are wet, the event will be 
cancelled or re-routed to avoid wet conditions. 

SS The event will be cancelled if rain occurs after the inspection or on the day of the race 

SS All litter will be removed within 24 hours following the event 

SS Inspection of trail conditions will be with the Conservation Commission’s representative prior to and after 
the event.  Trails will be returned to pre-event conditions within 7 days following the event.  

SS A map of the planned route is attached 

SS Trail markings shall be non-permanent 

SS Organizers are responsible for making arrangements for parking at Department of Public Works (if 
applicable), police and traffic control, and provisions for port-a-potties at their expense. 

Date/Time of     Date/Time of 

Pre-run Inspection    ________________  Post-run Inspection     _______________ 

    12/19/15       ___________________________ _________ 

                Event Point of Contact           Date   Conservation Commission   Date 





















 2016 Charles A. Moreno 
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED 
 

FOREST IMPROVEMENT HARVEST and TIMBER SALE AGREEMENT 
Henderson-Swasey Conservation Area 

Exeter, New Hampshire 
                                                                                                                         Page 1 of 8 
 
AGREEMENT made this 28th day of December 2015, between the Exeter Conservation 
Commission, representing the Town of Exeter, New Hampshire, a New Hampshire 
incorporated municipality with place of business at 10 Front Street, Exeter, New 
Hampshire 03833, hereinafter referred to as the LANDOWNER (the “LANDOWNER”), 
AND Scott Sweet, DBA Sweet’s Logging and Landclearing, Inc., a New Hampshire 
Corporation with listed address and place of business at PO Box 234, Scribner Road, 
Strafford, New Hampshire, 03884, with Scott Sweet signing as President, hereinafter 
referred to individually and collectively as the CONTRACTOR (the “CONTRACTOR”).  
 
ARTICLE I – Property Description and Stipulations 
 
A. The purpose of this Agreement is to stipulate the terms, conditions, and 

specifications for the CONTRACTOR to conduct a forest improvement harvest on 
the LANDOWNER’S woodland property (the “Property”).  Furthermore, since the 
CONTRACTOR will be purchasing the marketable sections of the trees that are 
harvested, this AGREEMENT also provides the conditions of this sale. 

 
B. The LANDOWNER agrees to sell to the CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR 

agrees to buy from the LANDOWNER certain marked timber trees (the “timber”) 
as designated and marked, or to be marked, with blue paint on the trunks or 
otherwise designated for cutting by the LANDOWNER’S forester, Charles 
Moreno, (the “Forester”), and the Forester’s employee(s). 
 

C. The Property is a 240.5± acre woodland property known as the “Henderson-
Swasey Conservation Area” which is located off Newfields Road and on the 
south side of NH Route 101 approximately 1± mile northwest of the Exeter town 
center.  The Property is located in the Town of Exeter, County of Rockingham, 
and State of New Hampshire.  The Property is identified in the Town of Exeter 
Tax Maps as Map 39, Lots 2 and 3; Map 40, Lot 13; and Map 49, Lot 8. 
 

D. The timber is situated on the approximately 120± acre “managed forest area” as 
defined in the most current Forest Management Plan for the Henderson-Swasey 
Conservation Area (Moreno, October 2011).  The managed forest area covers 
the southern section of the parcel as delineated on the Management 
Recommendations Map on page 5 of the aforementioned Forest Management 
Plan.  The managed forest area is delineated in the forest by the Forester by 
marked trees.   

 
E. The timber for harvest and sale, marked or to be marked by the LANDOWNER’S 

Forester with blue paint on the trunks, is roughly estimated to contain the 
following volumes: 

                                     75,000+ BF  -- White Pine sawtimber, all grades 
    8,000+ BF  -- Hemlock sawtimber, all grades 
  25,000+ BF  -- Red Oak sawtimber, all grades 

                10,000+ BF -- Hardwood sawtimber, mixed species and grades 



Forest Improvement Harvest and Timber Sale Agreement 
Henderson-Swasey Conservation Area, Exeter, New Hampshire 
January 2016 
Page 2 of 8 
 

 2016 Charles A. Moreno 
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED 
 

 

       2,000± Tons  -- Chipwood and/or pulp equivalent  
       150± Cords  -- Firewood or Chipwood equivalent  
           

NOTE:  The volumes of pulp (and firewood) are interchangeable with chipwood and may 
result in proportionally greater or lesser volumes of the various products.   

 

F. Where located through woodlands adjacent to harvest areas, the Property’s 
boundary lines are demarcated with orange paint blazes on tree trunks along the 
line and/or pink day-glow flagging.  These trees are strictly not to be harvested, 
nor is the CONTRACTOR authorized to cross the boundary lines with logging 
equipment onto an abutting property for any reason.   

 
G. The LANDOWNER warrants title to the land and to the tree stumpage covered by 

this Agreement with complete authority to sell such timber and enter this 
Agreement. 

 
H. CONTRACTOR assumes all risks of, and responsibility for, personal injury to 

CONTRACTOR’s agents and employees or others, and for damage to his/its 
property or the property of the LANDOWNER or others concerning operations 
under this Agreement. 

 
I. The CONTRACTOR stipulates that he/it is independent contractor and business, 

as are any trucker or logging crew he/it may assign and or contract to operate on 
the LANDOWNER’S property.  It is hereby stipulated that any truckers, loggers, 
co-workers, employees, subcontractors, and/or assignees of any kinds and all 
descriptions of the CONTRACTOR are not employees of the LANDOWNER or 
the LANDOWNER’S Forester.  Furthermore, the CONTRACTOR and his/its 
truckers, loggers, co-workers, employees, assignees will indemnify and save 
harmless the LANDOWNER and the Forester from any and all claims and 
actions covering loss costs, injuries, expense (including attorney and legal fees), 
and damages of every kind and description which may be brought or made 
against the LANDOWNER or Forester on account of or in any manner arising out 
of the work being done under this Agreement by the CONTRACTOR or his/its 
truckers, loggers, co-workers, employees, subcontractors and/or assignees. 

 
I. The CONTRACTOR insures that he/it and any subcontractor will carry and 

maintain Workmen’s Compensation Insurance for any and all of their owners, 
officers, and employees who are working on or in any way connected with the 
work on the LANDOWNER’S property.  In addition, the CONTRACTOR insures 
that he/it will carry Public Liability Insurance in an amount satisfactory to the 
LANDOWNER.  The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide a certificate of insurance 
coverage to the Town of Exeter indicating satisfactory levels of coverage prior to 
commencing work on the property  

 
J. The LANDOWNER shall allow the CONTRACTOR access to the Property for the 

purpose of cutting and removing the timber under all the terms, conditions, and 
specifications stated herein. 

 



Forest Improvement Harvest and Timber Sale Agreement 
Henderson-Swasey Conservation Area, Exeter, New Hampshire 
January 2016 
Page 3 of 8 
 

 2016 Charles A. Moreno 
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED 
 

 

K. All marked trees shall be cut and removed all harvest specifications listed in 
Article III met, and all operations of the CONTRACTOR on the Property will be 
completed by October 31, 2016.  The LANDOWNER may grant a logging 
extension period by signed rider to this Agreement, if so deemed by the 
LANDOWNER only, because of extenuating or unforeseen circumstances.  Time 
is of the essence. 

 
L. The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with any and all of the provisions herein 

stated, and shall conform to the directions and instructions given by the Forester.  
The Forester reserves the right to stop the harvest operation and suspend the 
CONTRACTOR’S entry privileges if the conditions of this Agreement are not 
being observed. 

 
M. The CONTRACTOR assumes sole and full responsibility for abiding by the New 

Hampshire DES Timber Harvest Notification Permit for crossing wetlands, and 
for abiding by all NH BMP’s while working in the vicinity of wetlands. 
 

N. The CONTRACTOR accepts full responsibility for contacting the gas line 
companies which own/operate the gas transmission lines which bisect the forest 
management area.  Furthermore, the CONTRACTOR accepts full responsibility 
and liability for complying with safety instructions and specifications from the gas 
line companies for crossing over the gas lines to access timber on the south side 
of the gas lines.  
 

 
ARTICLE II.  -  TRANSACTIONS 
 
Stumpage/Values 
 
A. The point of sale for all harvested timber on the LANDOWNER’S property is at 

the time each individual tree is severed from the stump.  From this point on, the 
CONTRACTOR incurs full responsibility for the payment of stumpage value at 
the rates quoted below. 

 
B. Timber will be sold on a “stumpage” basis as specified below, with payment 

made by the CONTRACTOR to the LANDOWNER for all marketable timber 
harvested.  Logs are to be sold in industry standard one thousand board feet 
units, signified by the abbreviation “MBF”.  

 
C. The CONTRACTOR agrees to pay for stumpage at the following rates (rates 

include the cost of the Timber Tax): 
$190.00/MBF    --  White Pine grade sawlogs  
$  40.00/MBF    --  White Pine pallet logs 

    $  45.00/MBF    --  Hemlock logs 
$  75.00/MBF   --  Red Oak pallet logs 

    $  45.00/MBF   --  Hardwood pallet or low-value logs 
$210.00/MBF    --  Long Hardwood mat logs 
$  20.00/Cord     -- Firewood  
$    2.00/Ton      --  Pine Pulp 



Forest Improvement Harvest and Timber Sale Agreement 
Henderson-Swasey Conservation Area, Exeter, New Hampshire 
January 2016 
Page 4 of 8 
 

 2016 Charles A. Moreno 
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED 
 

 

$    8.00/Ton     --  Hardwood Pulp 
$    4.00/Ton     --  Hemlock Pulp 
$    2.00/Ton       --  Whole Tree Chips  
 

D. The stumpage value of all hardwood grade sawlogs and veneer logs that are 
harvested by the CONTRACTOR will be determined using the operating rates 
listed below.  The CONTRACTOR will receive mill-delivered payment for 
hardwood grade logs and veneer, then deduct the operating rate for harvesting, 
yarding, processing, and trucking the hardwood logs to market.  The 
CONTRACTOR will then make payment of the balance of the mill-delivered 
payment to the LANDOWNER.  The CONTRACTOR’s operating rates are as 
follows:   

$250.00/MBF   --  Hardwood grade sawlogs 
$275.00/MBF   --  Hardwood veneer logs 

If the mill-delivered value for a hardwood log is $295.00/MBF or less, the log will 
be considered a hardwood pallet or low-value log, and then the CONTRACTOR 
will pay the LANDOWNER the default stumpage price of $45.00/MBF. 

 
E. Prices for products/species not listed above will be negotiated between the 

LANDOWNER’S Forester and the CONTRACTOR if and when they are 
produced.  

 
Timber Tax 
F. The CONTRACTOR agrees to purchase the timber for the respective stumpage 

values listed above.  The stumpage values listed above contain a 10% additional 
premium since the Town of Exeter Selectmen agreed (Selectmen Meeting 
12/28/2015) to completely abate, waive, and not assess a Timber Tax on the 
harvested timber under this Agreement.  It is understood that the rates paid for 
stumpage by the CONTRACTOR as quoted in this Agreement include the cost of 
the Timber Tax, and that the CONTRACTOR will not be held liable or 
accountable for any further Timber Tax if the LANDOWNER, the Town of Exeter, 
later decides to assess.  If the Timber Tax were to be assessed, the 
CONTRACTOR reserves the right to deduct 10%, or the amount equal to the 
Timber Tax, from the stumpage prices quoted above and paid to the Town. 
 

Payments 
G. The CONTRACTOR will make payment for stumpage to the Forester, with 

stumpage checks written to the Town of Exeter.  Stumpage payments must be 
accompanied by all corresponding mill scale receipts and the CONTRACTOR’S 
trip tickets.  The CONTRACTOR will also submit a statement that accounts for 
and summarizes the mill receipts submitted. 

 
H. The CONTRACTOR agrees to make stumpage payments on a weekly basis, 

paying for all stumpage delivered to market the previous week, or within one 
week of receiving market payment.   
 
 
 
 



Forest Improvement Harvest and Timber Sale Agreement 
Henderson-Swasey Conservation Area, Exeter, New Hampshire 
January 2016 
Page 5 of 8 
 

 2016 Charles A. Moreno 
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED 
 

 

Project Set-up, Staging, and Restoration Costs 
I. The CONTRACTOR agrees to establish access for the harvest operation 

covered under this Agreement.  Access establishment costs include removing 
vegetation and grading the Property’s existing woods road, clearing, excavating, 
and grading a new interior landing site, and enlarging the existing landing site.  
The CONTARACTOR agrees that clearing and excavation costs for re-
establishing the existing woods road, and creating two adequate landing sites for 
the harvest operation will not exceed the cost of $4,000.00.  The CONTRACTOR 
will deduct the cost of access excavation and site work from stumpage their 
stumpage payments, with accompanying documentation. 
 

J. The LANDOWNER agrees to cover the cost of materials to create adequate 
access to the landings sites, allowing the passage of trucks and equipment 
related to this harvest operation.  Materials include gravel, stone, geotextile fabric 
(if needed), and permanently-set culvert(s) (if needed).  The CONTRACTOR may 
purchase the materials, as needed, and deduct the cost from stumpage 
payments, with accompanying receipts for materials purchased.  If more than 4 
loads of gravel or stone are needed, or if geotextile or culvert(s) are needed to 
provide adequate access, the CONTRACTOR must first notify and receive 
approval from the LANDOWNER, in order for the LANDOWNER to cover the 
cost of these additional materials.  This provides the LANDOWNER, with 
recommendation from the Forester, the opportunity to assess the need for 
additional materials.  The LANDOWNER agrees to provide timely response to 
the CONTRACTOR if a request for additional materials is made.     
 

K. The CONTRACTOR agrees to cover the cost of landing and woods road 
restoration at the end of the project, in so far as providing final grading to travel 
surfaces, installing water bars, if needed, to control erosion, removing all 
equipment and any trash, and grading woody logging residuals onto the edges of 
the landing sites.  The LANDOWNER will cover the cost of seeding and mulching 
bare ground surfaces after the operation is completed, if it is decided that this 
action is needed.   
 

L. The CONTRACTOR agrees to set up warning signs on Newfields Road notifying 
oncoming traffic of trucks entering and exiting the Property during the course of 
the harvest operation.   
 
 

ARTICLE III. – Harvest Specs 
 
The CONTRACTOR agrees to harvest and remove the said trees in accordance with the 
following conditions: 

 
A. The CONTRACTOR will harvest and remove only trees that the Forester has 

selected and marked with blue paint, with the exception of trees which must be 
removed for skid trail access.  Unmarked trees that may be removed for skid trail 
access by the CONTRACTOR include diseased or declining beech, red maple, 
white birch, or hemlock trees or saplings.  All other trees, particularly oaks, pines, 
hickories, sugar maple, and black or yellow birches, including young growth and 



Forest Improvement Harvest and Timber Sale Agreement 
Henderson-Swasey Conservation Area, Exeter, New Hampshire 
January 2016 
Page 6 of 8 
 

 2016 Charles A. Moreno 
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED 
 

 

designated older growth significant trees (See the Physical Features Map in the 
Forest Management Plan), will be protected from unnecessary injury or harvest.  
The Forester retains the right to limit the number of unmarked trees harvested, if 
he deems an unnecessary and excessive number are being removed.  Scraping 
or “skinning” the bark of residual forest trees while logging will be avoided.  
 

B. The harvest must be done thoroughly and methodically.   
 

C. Damage to residual crop trees and specified pockets of forest regeneration will 
be avoided while harvesting and removing timber from the forest.  

 
D. STUMPS.  Stumps will be cut as low to the root swell as possible and generally 

within eight (8) inches of the highest ground, or exposed rock, around the stump.  
(During deep snow conditions provision is made to allow stumps 1± foot in 
height).  Reasonable effort will be made to re-cut the stumps of multiple-stem 
trees and skidding posts to within 24±” inches, of the ground. 

 
E. SLASH:  Tree tops and stems that are unmerchantable as a higher value 

product, including branches that break-off during the course of logging, will be 
yarded for chipping, or crushed to lie flat on the ground or generally lopped to 
within 2½ feet of the ground surface.  The CONTRACTOR should leave natural 
deadfall, including naturally fallen trees, in the woods on the forest floor.  

 
F. SLASH SETBACKS.  No slash may be left within 25 feet of abutting properties in 

accordance with New Hampshire law.    
 
G. ROADS and TRAILS:  The CONTRACTOR agrees to remove all slash generated 

from this operation from the Property’s existing main recreational trails, the 
woods road, and the gas line corridor. 
 

H. TRAIL CROSS-OVERS: Working with the Forester, the CONTRACTOR agrees 
to pre-plan crossovers over the Property’s recreational trails, and to avoid using 
the trails for skidding, unless necessary. 

 
I. All above-the-stump merchantable timber and biomass in tree stems and tops 

will be utilized as thoroughly as possible for their highest value products. 
 
J. Any felled tree that lodges in another tree will be taken down immediately. 
 
I. Bent saplings resulting from the operation shall be trimmed down to lie flat on the 

ground.  The logger shall cut, rather than run over, saplings (>2”) in skidder 
paths. 
 

J. Rutting of the ground by the CONTRACTOR’S equipment will be avoided.  
However, due to variable weather and inherent wet conditions on sections of the 
LANDOWNER’S property, it is recognized that ruts from skidding may occur.  
Any ruts made by the CONTRACTOR’S equipment, i.e., skidder, shall be 
backdragged as smooth as possible by the CONTRACTOR’S skidder.   
 



Forest Improvement Harvest and Timber Sale Agreement 
Henderson-Swasey Conservation Area, Exeter, New Hampshire 
January 2016 
Page 7 of 8 
 

 2016 Charles A. Moreno 
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED 
 

 

K. The CONTRACTOR may use branches and woody debris as matting to stabilize 
soft ground along skid trails.  New Hampshire Best Management Practices 
(BMPs) recommends this practice, with allowance for leaving the material in 
place after the operation is complete to minimize impact.  

 
L. The CONTRACTOR shall observe New Hampshire Best Management Practices 

(“BMP’s”) in the installation, usage, and removal of temporary stream or wetland 
crossings, properly poling all crossings or installing portable bridging prior to 
skidding.  The CONTRACTOR shall install stream crossings and cross streams 
only at permitted locations. A poled ford or portable bridging will be installed to 
cross the stream(s) and removed at the end of the operation, while applying New 
Hampshire BMP guidelines.  The CONTRACTOR agrees to assume full 
responsibility for abiding by NH DES Wetland Bureau regulations.  

 
M. LANDING RESTORATION.  The CONTRACTOR agrees to clean the landing 

sites at the end of the operation, leaving them free from all trash generated by 
this harvest operation.  The CONTRACTOR agrees to remove all marketable 
pulp, logs, firewood, and other merchantable forest products from the landing 
sites and Property within two weeks of the completion of logging on the Property.  
In addition, the CONTRACTOR will neatly pile, scatter, or spread, on the landing 
edges, all woody debris (log clippings, de-limbing scraps, tree bark, sawdust) 
resulting from this operation.  To minimize the amount of woody debris build-up 
in the landings, woody matting can be distributed about the woodlands, 
particularly to stabilize soft ground on skid trails, or to level extremely rocky 
ground.     
 

N. The LANDOWNER may find that woody debris cannot be adequately hidden 
from view or scattered neatly enough around the landing sites.  In this case, the 
LANDOWNER may opt for having woody landing debris buried alongside the 
landings by an excavator, or trucked offsite by a disposal service.  These forms 
of landing restoration, if needed or desired, requiring the hiring of extraneous 
equipment or services, is considered beyond the scope of the CONTRACTOR’S 
services, and will be contracted and paid for by the LANDOWNER.  

 
 
ARTICLE IV – Additional Stipulations 
 
The CONTRACTOR further agrees as follows: 
A. To inform the Forester if work is to be suspended for more than two (2) days 

because of equipment failure, illness or any other reason.  The CONTRACTOR 
will then notify the Forester before resuming work. 
  

B. To use reasonable care to prevent forest fires and to assume all liability for 
damage and suppression costs with respect to the property of the LANDOWNER 
and others if a forest fire occurs as a result of harvesting operation or because of 
carelessness of those involved in the harvesting. 

 
C. To refrain from littering the woodlands or landing areas with lunch papers, oilcans, or 

garbage of any description.  All trash (if any) from the CONTRACTOR’S operation 



Forest Improvement Harvest and Timber Sale Agreement 
Henderson-Swasey Conservation Area, Exeter, New Hampshire 
January 2016 
Page 8 of 8 
 

 2016 Charles A. Moreno 
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED 
 

 

will be removed by the CONTRACTOR from the LANDOWNER’S property 
immediately upon completion of the operation. 

 
D. The draining or dumping of equipment oil, hydraulic fluid, coolant, fuel, and 

associated parts onto the LANDOWNER’S property are strictly forbidden.  The 
service of equipment on the site must be done in a manner that used equipment 
fluids are properly contained and disposed of by approved methods. 
 

E. This Agreement is governed by laws of the State of New Hampshire. 
 

ARTICLE V – Termination of Contract 
 
It is mutually understood and agreed by and between all parties heretofore mentioned as 
follows: 
A. All rights granted under this Agreement revert to the LANDOWNER on the date 

of termination of this Agreement, whether such termination results from the full 
performance of the said Agreement, or is so declared by the LANDOWNER on 
account of breach of this Agreement by the CONTRACTOR. 

 
B. The rights granted herein by the LANDOWNER to the CONTRACTOR are not 

assigned to another without the LANDOWNER’S written consent. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands on the day and year 
noted below. 
 
 
 
___________________________________               ____________________________ 
LANDOWNER      DATE               WITNESS 
  Exeter Conservation Commission 

 
 
___________________________________               ____________________________ 
CONTRACTOR                                   DATE     WITNESS 
 Scott Sweet, President                          

DBA Sweet’s Logging and Landclearing, Inc. 
            Strafford, New Hampshire  











These minutes are subject to possible corrections/revisions at a subsequent  
Exeter Conservation Commission meeting. 

 

1 
 

Exeter Conservation Commission  
Draft Minutes  

Henderson Swasey Town Forest, Newfields Road Exeter  
December 15, 2015  

 
 
Site Walk Notes: 
The Conservation Commission gathered at the Newfields Road entrance to the Henderson 
Swasey Town Forest at 2:00 pm.  The purpose of the site walk was to meet with the contracted 
forester Charlie Moreno and review the logging plans.   
 
Members Present:  Carlos Guindon, Peter Richardson, Don Briselden, Cynthia Field, Bill 
Campbell.   
 
Staff and Others Present:  Kristen Murphy, Natural Resource Planner, Charlie Moreno & Greg 
Jordan consulting foresters, and trail users Ri Fahnestock, Mark Damsel, and Deb Humiston.  
 
Mrs. Murphy presented a brief history of timber management for Henderson Swasey and 
introduced Charlie Moreno, consulting forester. Mr. Moreno presented an overview of the timber 
management plan update and led a walk through the forest.   
 
Key notes: 

1. Trees will be selectively cut with some small openings created.   
2. In most areas (landings sites excepted) trees for removal have been marked.  Different 

markings indicate tree quality. 
3. Goal for removal is habitat enhancement, not financial gain.  It is likely the logging 

operation will be revenue neutral with any proceeds likely going toward invasive plant 
control. 

4. Selection of what trees to mark was based on examples such as whether the tree was 
diseased, what the crown condition was, and if removal would enhance growth of a more 
healthy/productive tree.    

5. Road upgrade and landing preparation will require grading. 
6. Trucks leaving the forest will require some form of traffic control. 
7. Timing is based on conditions so identifying when the harvest will happen is difficult.  

Under consistent ideal conditions logging would take approximately 5 weeks. 
8. For the safety of the logging operation trails would need to be closed to use.  This will 

require coordination between the town, the forester and the logging company.   
 
 
  



These minutes are subject to possible corrections/revisions at a subsequent  
Exeter Conservation Commission meeting. 

 

1 
 

Exeter Conservation Commission  
Draft Minutes  

Wheelwright Room, Exeter Town Offices  
December 15, 201  

 
 
Call Meeting to Order  
Members Present: Acting Chairman Carlos Guindon called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm in 
the Wheelwright Room of the Exeter Town Offices. Additional members present included Peter 
Richardson, Virginia Raub, Don Briselden, Cynthia Field, Bill Campbell, and Selectmen’s 
Representative Nancy Belanger.   
 
Staff Present:  Kristen Murphy, Natural Resource Planner 
 
Action Items  
 
1. Review of Logging Bids for Henderson Swasey Town Forest Timber Harvest. 

Carlos Guindon introduced contracted forester Charlie Moreno who presented the 
Commission with three bids for logging of the Town Forest in accordance with the forest 
management plan.  Bids were summarized in a table for comparison purposes.  It was noted 
how close the bids were and Don Briselden remarked that this is indicative of bidders being 
very clear on the scope of work.  In response to questions by board members, Mr. Moreno 
discussed that the proceeds included in the table were based on estimates from field cruising 
of the forest conducted by he and his assistant Greg, noted that the actual bids submitted were 
based on board feet and that the ultimate value will be determined by the mill.  Actual 
amounts may vary based on log condition.  Bids also included improvements to roads and 
landing areas and the Commission discussed differences in those bids.  Other topics discussed 
included the need for traffic control when the trucks are leaving the site, the forester and 
logging companies role in the wetland application, and that the town has the ability to waive 
the timber tax fees.   He clarified an important step prior to signing the contract is for the 
Commission to determine if the Board of Selectmen is supportive of waiving the timber tax.  
The Commission also asked how this project ranks in terms of complexity or size with respect 
to typical harvest.  Mr. Moreno stated the recreation use, density of trails, the rockiness of the 
site and the incorporation of a gasline crossing all contribute to make this is a complex 
logging operation. 
 
Mr. Campbell made a motion to select Sweets Logging and Land Clearing as the logging 
contractor, second by Mr. Briselden. 
 
VOTE:  Unanimous 

 
2. Minimum Impact Dredge and Fill application for 209 Water Street for the replacement 
of the 2,440 square foot PEA seasonal boat dock with a 2,920 square foot dock. 
 

Roger Wakeman from PEA and Luke Hurley from Gove Environmental presented the project 
to the Commission.  It was clarified the replacement dock would extend 30’ beyond the 



These minutes are subject to possible corrections/revisions at a subsequent  
Exeter Conservation Commission meeting. 

 

2 
 

existing dock and will add boat slips to the design.  In response to questions, it was clarified 
that the material will be high density polyethylene and a brochure showing the surface design 
was passed around.  Concerns were expressed about the ability of light to penetrate through 
the dock in order to support submerged aquatic vegetation.  Mr. Hurley said they could look 
into it. 
 
Mr. Richardson made a motion to recommend approval to the State as presented, seconded by 
Mrs. Field.   
 
Vote: Unanimous.  

 
With no further business, Mr. Briselden made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Mr. Campbell.  
Vote: Unanimous.  Mr. Guindon adjourned the meeting at 6:40 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Kristen Murphy 
Natural Resource Planner 



These minutes are subject to possible corrections/revisions at a subsequent  
Exeter Conservation Commission meeting. 

 

1 
 

Exeter Conservation Commission  
Draft Minutes  

December 8, 2015  
 
 
Call to Order 

The meeting convened at 7:02 pm in the Nowak Room of the Exeter Town Offices on the above date. 

1. MEMBERS PRESENT:  Bill Campbell, Ginny Raub, Carlos Guindon, Nancy Belanger, Peter 
Richardson, Jay Gregoire, Alyson Eberhardt 

Staff Present: Kristen Murphy (Natural Resource Planner), Sarah McGraw (Recording Secretary) 

2. Public Comment: None 

Action Items  

1. Current Conditions Report for Callahan Property 

Ms. Murphy explained that the Town holds executory interests and Southeast Land Trust holds 
the easement of the Callahan Property. South East Land Trust and Ms. Murphy  met with the 
landowner who seemed to be confused as to the restrictions of the easement. SELT and Ms. 
Murphy met with the landowner to discuss issues. The landowner  has hired Mark West as  
consultant to restore the encroachments on the property. A baseline documentation of the 
conservation land is typically prepared at the time of acquisition. To update the baseline 
documentation from the encroachments  and the restoration that was done a current conditions 
report was prepared. The Conservation Commission would sign off on the current conditions 
report. Ms. Murphy said ideally a baseline report would be completed for each property. Mr. 
Gregoire asked if the Commission would hire someone to create the baseline documentation for 
other property’s. Murphy said there are many properties in need of baseline documentation. 

Mr. Campbell motioned to authorize the chair , Mr. Gregoire to sign off on the current conditions 
report on the Callahan property second by Ms. Raub. VOTE: Unanimous 

2. Expenditure Request - $30 LWCF Signs 

Through DRED, the Conservation Commission received grant money from the Land Water 
Conservation Fund for Oaklands, Allen Street and Smith-Page property. The grant requires all 
properties be indicated by a sign. Ms. Murphy bought the signs and is looking to receive 
reimbursement. 

Mr. Richardson moved to expend $30.00 for property signs, second by Mr. Gregoire. VOTE: 
Unanimous 

3. Committee Reports 

a. Trails 

Mr. Gregoire said that fire fighter Jason Fritz requested the Conservation Commission 



These minutes are subject to possible corrections/revisions at a subsequent  
Exeter Conservation Commission meeting. 

 

2 
 

recommend to the Board of Selectmen that the New England Mountain Bike Patrol 
(NEMBA) agreement be signed because they received a certificate of insurance. The 
Conservation Commission and the Board of Selectmen will sign off on the agreement. 

Mr. Gregoire restated the recommendation that the BOS to sign the NEMBA patrol 
agreement second by Mr. Richardson. VOTE: Unanimous 

Ms. Murphy said that UNH Cooperative extension received a grant though the National 
Park Service on the Trail Finder Project. The project is a website where all trail data 
would be submitted to. Ms. Murphy said that Exeter would participate with the help of 
Cooperative Extension. 

Mr. Gregoire noted that he has received emails from bikers with concerns of private 
property owners placing no trespassing signs on some trails. The emails asked if the 
properties were indeed private or public trails. Mr. Gregoire and Ms. Murphy responded 
to bikers that the land is private. 

Ms. Murphy said that the Henderson-Swasey Town Forest has been vandalized by people 
cutting through the locked gate and dumping trash. 

Mr. Gregoire mentioned that the letter to the editor he wrote about leash laws made it to 
the paper. Mr. Guindon asked if there are any off leash locations. Ms. Murphy said that 
currently there are not any off leash locations. There was more discussion on signs placed 
around properties to encourage leash use. 

Mr. Richardson said the trails committee at the Riverwoods wished to put a sign on the 
Jolly Rand trail at the crossroad. The Commission agreed to allow the Riverwoods Trail 
Committee to put up signs. 

Mr. Gregoire proposed a stock sign placed at the entrances to the Town Forest. Ms. 
Murphy said that signs are $20 per sign. 

Mr. Gregoire motioned to approve up to $100.00 for informational signs on leashing 
dogs, second by Mr. Campbell. VOTE: Unanimous 

b. Outreach 

Ms. Murphy reported that through the Piscataqua Regional Estuaries Partnership (PREP) 
grant the Healthy Lawns Clean Water initiative introduced to the public  at the Household 
Hazardous Waste Day. The group has drafted a fertilizer zoning amendment. 

c. Property Monitoring 

Mr. Richardson commented that on one property (Allen St) there is a 900 foot buffer that 
took 12 hours to monitor. The problem is the abutting landowners have encroached on the 
Town property but the pins are difficult to find and the landowners have left items such as 
trash, boats and sheds over their property lines. Mr. Richardson asked how the 
Commission should handle the issue. Mr. Richardson wished to get the landowners 
together for a discussion. There was discussion on surveying the property which is costly. 



These minutes are subject to possible corrections/revisions at a subsequent  
Exeter Conservation Commission meeting. 

 

3 
 

The tax maps show pin locations but some of the pins cannot be found. Mr. Guindon said 
this conversation ties into having a baseline assessment. There are also no signs where the 
right of ways are located. 

4. Treasurers Report 

Ms. Raub reported that there is $7,570.23 of approved expenditures. $ 1400.00 was set a side for 
forestry work. $2,486. 77 remain in the budget and 3,012.27 remains on hand in the bank. 
$1332.87 has not been resolved by the Finance Department. 

Mr. Richardson moved to approve the budget second by Mr. Campbell. VOTE: Unanimous 

5. Approval of Minutes: October 13, 2015 

Mr. Campbell motioned to approve the minutes as amended, second by Mr. Guindon. VOTE: 
Unanimous 

6. Other Business 

Ms. Belanger reported on her attendance at the annual meeting of the  New Hampshire 
Association of Conservation Commissions. She attended a permaculture workshop. 

7. Next meeting: December 8, 2015 

8. The meeting was adjourned at 8: 30 pm and the Commission went into a work session. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Sarah McGraw 


	January 12 Meeting Memo.pdf
	Date:  January 8, 2016


